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Before the Federal Election Commission

COMPLAINT

(Pursuant to Title 2, U.S.C. § 437g and Title 11, CFR Part

110)
TO:

GENERAL COUNSEL

Federal Election Commission
1325 K Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20463

COMPLAINANT:

PHILIP M. STERN
2000 P Street, N.W. Suite 408

Washington, D.C. 20036

COMPLAINANT'S ATTORNEY:

Brown & Seymour

100 Park Avenue, Room 2606
New York, New York 10007
(212) 599-0068

RESPONDENTS:

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
3135 Easton Turnpike
Fairfield, CT 06431

Each of the Officers and Directors

cf the General Electric Company during
the 1986 election cycle, whose names and
addresses are set forth on Appendix A to

this complaint,

VICLATION ALLEGED:

purposes, in violation of Title 2,

2€:2AHd 62 9nv gg

Unlawful corporate expenditures during the 1986
election cycle for the establishment, administration, and
solicitation of contributions to a separate segregated fund
to be utilized for lobbying rather than for political

Section 441b(a) and b(b)(2)(C).

United States Code,
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DETAILED ALLEGATIONS

Complainant, PHILIP M. STERN, for his complaint
herein states on information and belief as follows:

In 1975, the General Electric Company established
the "Non-Partisan Political Support Committee for General
Electric Employees" (originally called the "Non-Partisan
Political Support Committee" and hereinafter referred to as

"GE/PAC"). Since that time, on information and belief,

General Electric's management has expended substantial sums
from the corporation's treasury for the administration of
GE,'PAC and for the solicitation of GE/PAC contributions from
GE executives and administrative personnel.

As operated under the management of General
Electric Company the GE/PAC has been converted from an
instrument of political electioneering activity to one of

legislative activity, in direct violation of the explicit

i

intent and purpose of the statute. Such misuse of the
GE. PAC is evidenced by the nature of its expenditures during
tne 1985-1986 electicn cycle:

In the 1986 election, the GE/PAC cave money to
thircty-four House candidates who faced no opponent, and to
another thirty-four who had won by at least three-to-one
margins in their last four elections, and hence could be

predicted to coast to easy victories. GE/PAC contributions
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served no political purpose in bringing about the reelection
of these sixty-eight Members of Congress.

In 1986, GE/PAC made contributions without regard
to candidates' attitudes toward business, as measured by the
appreval rating given lawmakers' Congressional voting
records by the U.S. Chamber of Commerce. In the 1986
California U.S. Senate race, the GE/PAC gave funds to
Democrat Alan Cranston (average Chamber of Commerce approval
rating: 12.8%) in preference to the Republican challenger,
Congressman Edward Zschau, whose voting record in the House
had received a 74% Chamber approval rating in 1984, and 100%
tne year before.

In 1986, GE/PAC contributed to both opposing
candidates in six Senate elections. 1In two instances, when
the preelection contribution recipients lost, the GE/PAC
made pcstelection contributions to the opposing candidates
wns turned out to be winners.

In 1986, out of 214 House contests in which the
incumbent sought reelection, GE backed the incumbent in 212
races (including 34 in which the incumbent had no opponent).

Tnat is, GE selected the incumbent 98% of the time. Aside

from a single instance where GE backed both the incumbent
and the challenger, in only 2 of 214 cases -- 1% -- did the
GE/PAC managers find the challenger preferable to the

incumbent.




Not once in twenty-seven Senate races in which the
GE/PAC made contributions and the incumbent sought
reelection did the PAC forsake the incumbent -- althcugh in
five, it gave to both incumbent and challenger.

The nature of these contributions during the 1986

election cycle demonstrates that the GE/PAC is not being

operated by the corporation in most cases for bona fide

political purposes to support electioneering activities, but

rather is being used as a vehicle for making payments to
incumbent Senators and Congressmen to advance the company's

legislative lobbying interests.

0 9 4

Section 441b(a) of Title 2, United States Coile

3

expressly states that:

(a) It is unlawful *** for any corporation
whatever, or any labor organization, to make a
centribution or expenditure in connection with any
election at which *** a Senator or Representative
*** are to be voted for *** or any officer of any
director of any corporation *** to consent to any
contribution or expenditure by the corporation ***
prchibited by this section.

R 930407

The relevant exception to this prohibition is
contained in Section 441b(b)(2)(C) which excludes
corpcration expenditures for:

(C) the establishment, administration, and

solicitation of contributions to a separate

segregated fund to be utilized for political
purposes by a corporation, **x,
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The separate segregated fund (GE/PAC) in this instance was not
utilized for "political purposes" by the corporation -- as
distinct from legislative lobbying purposes -- and the
exclusion does not apply.

Accordingly, the Commission should find that
during the 1986 election cycle the General Electric Company
made unlawful expenditures in connection with numerous
Congressional elections, and that the officers and directors
of General Electric who authorized or approved such
expenditures acted in violation of Section 44l1b(a), and the
Commission should impose appropriate sanctions against

respondents and take appropriate steps to prevent continuing

DRI -

Philip M. Stern
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violations of this section.

Swcrn to before me this
/5 day of _Tu/‘/, 1988

R 90407

Notary Public
/77 (f(‘mn;,_,'f,zn E)-('o,,vu /%\jAJI 3// 199/




Appendix A

INDIVIDUAL RESPONDENTS

(Officers and Directors of the
General Electric Company during
the 1986 election cycle)

Officers

John F. Welch, Jr.,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Lawrence A. Bossidy,
Vice Chairman and Executive Officer

Edward E. Hood, Jr.,
Vice Chairman and Executive officer

Directors

Richard T. Baker Robert E. Mercer
Lawrence A. Bossidy Gertrude G. Michelson
James G. Boswell II Barbara Scott Preiskel
Silas S. Cathcart Lewis T. Preston
Charles D. Dickey, Jr. Frank H.T. Rhodes
Lawrence E. Fouraker Andrew C. Sigler

Henry H. Henley, Jr. John F. Welch, Jr.
Henry L. Hillman Walter B. Wriston
Edward E. Hood,Jr.

Addresses

The address for each of the foregoing individual
respondents is:

c/o General Electric Company
3135 Easton Turnpike
Fairfield, CT 06431
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

N e
ST B Eereet, MW
SLite 408
AR SRRy 3 e SRS SR AT
=iE VIS
JagmiMrl STern:

This letter ackrowlegges sece:fT 2N Aucust
comalaimt ailesing sos=:iole viglations a2+ the
TEmEangn. | 8ot LhgEl Lo E Ay xs amencea :(the "dct’
CiscTriz Zomean:. arc eact o2F the Senerzl cfliect
e Eone, The recesgpponcents w11l be notified
witnin five Zdavs.

You will te noti-ied as scon as the Federa
2120 Takx=2s <inai action on your comeslaint. Sh
2y acdisicnal in<crmation in this matter, Al
the T++ize o4 n it = iy 1RF
ST S I & a rrginsl €4
oLusRoersd This 23zg refer 3
a.’ ro T Are iz e g ‘our 1n<farma
TRCTSC & Zr1S-< IesIription o- The Tommissiorn’
ham3iirnzs comzlainte, I+ vou have any 2uestion
S=vna Cixncn, Docyst Zhief, at (Z02) IT74-F1i0.

Sincerelv.
Lawrence M. Nob

Seneral Councel

=T losure
Erocegures

Brown & Seymour
100 Park Avenue
Roam 2606

New York, NY 10007

September 6, 1988

ey =ps

S ST o= e
Fzge»xl Ela2ctior
). by *he Eeneral
ric O+fic=2re  anc
of this complaint

1 Election Commis-—-

oulc
gase

vau

crmation  Tust
moleirid. HNe -
c this numDps-
tion, we nave
s ©rocegures
=, cleass cont
ie

—ouncel

+crward 1%

receive

to
Ds
a8

ba

ot

[T ST
n Qo

ot




296 3

5

R 90407

IR0
J

»

Haod ity r,
vy
[ e B

i1}
6

glez &

i
i
e

55
Py

ML

5

vy,
i

H

]
<k 00
B

o
i
M
0 T TS e

«t in

ot
T

{

b
T

ot W

[N

Y
T
-

4 ot b4

wln

U w

10

ot
M)
B]
2

m

WE

Maa W

eges t
ers anrd
eral =lectionr Camnaxgn Act of

o+ th

SR T

mraspundad

n @ b et D)
m o ke 5 vy I
WM =N n
n m n ot m

3

This
A373¢
not

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGYON, D.C. 20463

lcn. 7»

_cmcany
TurnrEike
THAT]

2ich:

nat the sSeneral
Directors of Seneral
»
e comglain 1= enrnclosed. wne
?leas rete~  to
znCce,

=ave
shoula

the Gen
Fie

are
Where apcroor:

fcuﬁ reSECcnseE,
Counsel’s Q+fice, mu=s+t o
this letter. I+ noc respcn
fartner ac

-
m
1]

0
<
b{

11

matter will remain ccr+icerti

ar (§: (B} amgd Section

al i1n accorcance
4Z7g (ar (12
ify the Commission in writing that you wicsh the

comeiaint  whi

any and each of the
have viclated e

nded (the "Act"). A

~ave Sumberez this matter

Amber n all ok

oF
th
Qe

Svmafc

=
a
o
ct

cemcn
the

CmEany

actual

-+

Senerxl

Or+sicers

bW
W
e
3

W 3o

O mmw
3 w2 71 b
m
n
3 e

,‘
ot
< N

j-hl)m 0

]

3

ot
0
ct ot

ments should Dﬂ
:1d be addressec
within 1S davs
eived within 15

1

=cd on the avaii-—-

w
Tt ot
m
71}
vt

[

b3
"
[ | (I
Onmn-
[T T |
mn w
ot Yl
ot T O
LU (R
n ar m

u
3
a
w
Ui

L’? lﬂ

]

with Sec-
cf Title 2 unless
matter to

204/

made public, I¥ you i1ntend to be represented by counsel in
matter, please advise the Commission by completing the

osed form stating the name, address, and telephone number of
counsel, and authorizing such ccunsel to receive any

fications and other communications from the Commission.

MmO
™

T o

D or FitS
J

[¥]

N
[
o NN

[8




8 9 N 4 07 o009 (e

I+ you have any questions, please contact Jim Srown,
etafs memper ass:aned to *his matter, at (I02) I78-8200.
your information, we have attached a bri=f gescription oSf

Commission s prccedures for handl:ing ccmplaints.
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Lawrence M., Ncoblie
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cc: Robert W. Nelsan, Treasurer

Non-Partisan Political Support
Comittee For General Electric
Enployees
3135 Easton Turnpike

Fairfield, CT 06431
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WAME OF COUNSEL: ___ Robert B. Fiske..lx

pavis, Polk & Wardwell

1 ChaseLManhattan Plaza

New York, NY 10005

(212) 530-4000

e-named indiviﬁual is heteby designated as my
receive any notifications and other

my behalf before

The abov
counsel and is authorized tb
ations from the Commission and to act on

Generdl Electric igypaiézxﬂdﬂAJ//\\
- by: /
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Date
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the Commission.

General Electric Company

RESPONDENT'S NAME:
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c/o Martin F. Connor

ADDRESS

Washington Ccunsel

R 9

1331 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
1

00:2 Hd H1 43588

HOISTIL] L

Washington, D.C. 20004

BOMEX PRONE:?
BUSINESS PHONE:

202 637-4116
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(212) 530-4508

September 14, 1988

Re: MUR 2682 - General Electric Company and Directors

James Brown, Esq.

Office of the General Counsel
Federal Election Commission
1325 K Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20463

Dear Mr. Brown:

I€:11HY 92 43S 83

This will confirm our telephone conversation of
today's date in which you have agreed to extend the Respon-
dents' time to submit a response to the complaint filed in
tlie above referenced matter until October 7, 1988.

Sincerely,
a

ron Katz
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cc: Martin F. Connor
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ,
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW.YORK

PHILIP M. STERN, '
MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER

Plaintiff, 86 Civ. 4055 (MJL) y

- against - MQE 168%

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, JOHN F.
WELCH, JR., LAWRENCE A. BOSSIDY,
EDWARD E. HOOD, JR., RICHARD T.
BAKER, JAMES G. BOSWELL II,

SILAS C. CATHCART, CHARLES D.
DICKEY, JR., LAWRENCE E. POURAKER,
HENRY H. HENLEY, JR., HENRY L.
HILLMAN, ROBERT E. MERCER, GERTRUDE
G. MICHELSON, BARBARA SCOTT
PREISKEL, LEWIS T. PRESTON,

FRANK H.T. RHODES, ANDREW C.
SIGLER, and WALTER B. WRISTON,

) 9 6 9

o
L

Defendants.

<

APPEARANCES:

BROWN & SEYMOUR

Attorneys for Plaintiff
100 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10017

BY: PETER M. BROWN, ESQ.

8 90407

DAVIS POLK & WARDWELL
Attorneys For Defendants
One Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, New York 10005

BY: BY: ROBERT B. FISKE, JR.

JAMES BRUCE ESQ.

Antitrust and Litigation Counsel
General Electric Company
Fairfield Connecticut 06431
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MARY JOHNSON LOWE, D. J.
Plaintiff commenced this derivative action
on behalf of himself and all other shareholders of
General Electric ("GE") who are similarly situated.
This action is brought under the diversity jurisdiction 3
of this court.,
Defendant GE and its directors have moved
pursuant to Fed.R.Civ. P. 12(b)(6) to dismiss the

complaint for failure to state a claim for which relief

can be granted and pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 12(b)(1)

O

~ for lack of subject matter jurisdiction.

o Plaintiff alleges in this complaint that

(o since 1975, GE has expended substantial sums from the

i corporation's treasury for the solicitation of contributions
™ to, and the administration of the "Non-Partisan Political

c

- Support Committee for General Electric Employees" ("GE/PAC").
{an)

o

(< o
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The verified complaint alleges four causes

of action:

(1) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board

of Directors (the "Board") in wasting corporate
assets by authorizing, directing and acquiescing
in GE/PAC payments made to incumbent members

of Congress without regard to their position

on legislative issues of concern to GE;

(2) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board .
in authorizing, directing and acquiescing

in violations of the Federal Regulation of

Lobbying Act;

(3) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board
in authorizing, directing and acquiescing

in violations of the prohibitions against

bribing Members of Congress; and

(4) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board's
excessive expenditures of corporate funds
for the administration of, and solicitation
of contributions for GE/PAC.

09 7

The complaint alleges, in part that:

3

In 1972, Congress enacted the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971 (PL 92-225) whiech included

a provision (now incorporated in 2 U.S.C.
§441b(b)(2)(C)) expressly authorizing the
expenditure of corporate treasury funds for

"the establishment, administration, and solicitation
of contributions to a separate segregated

fund [PAC] to be utilized for political purposes.

R 90407

Complaint, 912 (emphasis in original). The complaint

further states that:
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As op d under the manngement'eneral
Elect ompany the GE/PAC has converted
from an instrument of political electioneering
activity to one of legislative activity,

in direct violation of the explicit intent

and purpose of the statute. Such misuse

of the GE/PAC is evidenced by the nature

of its expenditures during the 1983-1984
election cycle.

Complaint, 914 (emphasis in original).
Plaintiff asks this court to issue an order:
(a) Requiring defendants other than General
Electric Company jointly and severally to
account and pay over to General Electric
Company all corporate funds improperly expended
on the administration of and solicitation
of contributions for GE/PAC;
(b) Prohibiting further use of corporate
funds for GE/PAC or any other Political Action
Committee; and
(¢) Granting plaintiff the reasonable costs
and disbursements incident to the prosecution
of this action, including reasonable attorneys
fees.
Complaint, p. 12.
Defendants move to dismiss the complaint
on three grounds. First, the defendants argue that
the complaint fails because all of the alleged acts
of the GE/PAC are legal and proper under the Federal
Election Campaign Act ("FECA"), the regulations promulgated
thereunder, and every other statute cited in the complaint.
Second, they contend that a private party has no standing
under the FECA, or under any of the other federal laws
cited in the complaint to seek the relief plaintiffs
requests. Third, the defendants assert that the complaint
fails because all of the alleged actions of the individual

defendants were properly within their sound business

judgment.*/

*/ Because of our disposition under defendants' arguments
one and two above, we do not reach the business judgment
rule.

4
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Discussion

A motion to dismiss a complaint should not
be granted unless it appears to a certainty that the
plaintiff would not be entitled to relief under any
state of facts which could be proved in support of
the claim. In addition, the complaint must be viewed
in the light most favorable to the plaintiff and the
truth of all facts well pleaded, admitted. Costello,

et al. v. Town of Fairfield, Nos. 342, 393, slip. op.

at 1482 (2d Cir. February 12, 1987).

The essence of plaintiff's complaint is his
allegation that the legislative history of the FECA
discloses that its purpose was to facilitate the collection
of voluntary contributions to be used by a corporation
PAC for the support of electioneering activities.

Plaintiff alleges that Congressman Hansen, sponsor

of the bill, stated on the floor of the House that

the statute was not designed to cover corporate legislative
activities and lobbying. Defendant directors, plaintiff
complains, have unlawfully operated the PAC by expending
its funds for legislative activity, lobbying, and bribery
in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 203, thereby wasting corporate

assets and breaching their fiduciary duties.




Plaintiff brings his'action under the diversity
jurisdiction of this court alleging state common law
claims. The apparent reason for plaintiff's reliance
on state law is that the action would be barred if
plaintiff attempted to directly attack the operation
of the GE/PAC as being in violation of the FECA since
Congress has decreed that the Federal Election Conmission
("FEC") has exclusive initial jurisdiction over alleged

violations of the Act.®*/

*/ A person who believes that the Act has been violated
must first file a complaint with FEC. In cases where
the FEC determines that the complaint i3 supported

by probable cause, the FEC must attempt to correct

or prevent the alleged violation "by informal methods

of conference, conciliation, and persuasion...” 2
U.S.C. §437g(a)(4). 1If conciliation fails, the FEC

may institute a civil action for relief. 2 U.S.C.
§437g(a)(6).

The complainant may bring an action against the FEC

in federal court where the FEC has dismissed the eccmplaint

or failed to act on it within 120 days. 2 U.S.C. §437g(a)(8)(A).
Where the court finds that the FEC acted "in a manner

contrary to law", it may direct the FEC to conform

to the law within 30 days. If the FEC fails to comply

with the court's directives, the complainant may bring

a civil action to remedy the violation. 2 U.S.C.

§437g(a)(8)(C).

-
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Plaintiff may believe he is entitled to invoke
the jurisdiction of this court by reliance on oblter

dicta in Corte v. Ash, 422 U.S. 66, 84 (1974). In

that case, Ash, a stockholder in Bethlehem Steel Corporation,
brought a derivative action seeking an injunction and

damages claiming that the corporate directors had authorized
expenditure of general corporate funds for political

purposes in the 1972 presidential election. Ash claimed

that this use of corporate funds was a violation of

18 U.S.C. § 610.%/ Since Section 610 was a criminal
statute, Ash asked the court to imply a private remedy
for the criminal violation. After stating its reasons
why a private cause of action would not be implied,

the court said:

*/ Ash also alleged pendant claims that the use of
corporate funds was ultra vires and a breach of the
directors' fiduciary duty. For reasons not material
here, the pendant claims were dropped before appeal
to the circuit court.




Fourth, and finally, for reasons already
intimated, it is entirely appropriate in

this instance to relegate respondent and

others in his situation to whatever remedy

is created by state law. In addition to

the ultra vires action presented here, [cite
omitted] the use of corporate funds in violation
of federal law may, under the law of some
States, give rise to a cause of action for .
breach of fiduciary duty. See e.g., Miller

V. American Telephone & Telegraph Co., 507

F.2d 759 (3rd Cir. 1974). Corporations are
creatures of state law, and investors commit
their funds to corporate directors on the
understanding that, except where federal

law expressly requires certain responsibilities
of directors with respect to stockholders,

state law will govern the internal affairs

of the corporation.

Ash, 422 U.S, at 84.
Plaintiff, in order to bring himself within

the Corte v. Ash dictum must allege that these defendants

used corporate funds in violation of federal law and

that such use gives rise to a cause of action under
the law of New York for breach of fiduciary duty.

This plaintiff has failed to do.

RI 04077 30970
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Plaintiff argues that:

There is nothing in the Verified Complaint
alleging violations of the FECA. As noted
above, the Verified Complaint charges the
Board with breaches of their fiduciary duties
for directing and abetting violations of
their common law responsibilities as well
as the diseclosure requirements of the Federal
Regulation of Lobbying Act ("FRLA")[*/] and bribery
statutes. *

(Plaintiff's Brief In Opposition, p. 17).

*/ The FRLA, 2 'J.S.C. §§ 261-270, established a reporting

and disclosure system with respect to persons engaged

in lobbying activities. 2 U.S.C. §§266, 267; United

States v. Harris, 347 U.S. 612, 620, 623 (1954). Specifically
excluded from the provisions of the FRLA are "political
committeel[s] as defined in the Federal Corrupt Practices

Act" (repealed and replaced by the FECA). 2 U.S.C.

§ 266. Furthermore, the provisions of the FRLA do

"not apply to practices or activities regulated by

the [FECA]." 2 U.S.C. § 270.
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Plaintiff's claims that the defendants have
violated the FRLA and federal bribery statutes have
no merit.

FRLA
Plaintiff contends that:

Defendants urge that since GE/PAC is a separate
segregated fund established under FECA, it

is exempt from the registration and disclosure
requirements of FRLA. While this is true

as to the PAC, the argument misses the point

of the Verified Complaint, namely, that the
corporation is not exempt from FRLA, and

GE's expenditure of corporate funds for the
solicitation and administration of GE/PAC

to be used principally to influence the passage
or defeat of legislation constitutes expenditures
which must be reported under FRLA.

(Plaintiff's Brief In Opposition, p. 9).

This argument misses the mark. The GE/PAC
is a "political committee", 2 U.S.C. § 266. As such
its activities are regulated by the FECA, and not the
FRLA, 2 U.S.C. § 270. 1If plaintiff's complaint is
that corporate funds used to administer the GE/PAC
are expended improperly by the GE/PAC for lobbying
purposes, this is precisely the type of complaint the
FEC was designed to adjudicate. Plaintiff may not
raise this claim in the first instance in the district

court. 2 U.S.C. §437q(a)(4).

10




Bribery

Plaintiff's claim that the GE/PAC's distribution
of funds to incumbent congressmen in non-eléction
years constitutes bribery is inconsistent with the
regulations and rulings of the FEC. See, 11 C.F.R.
§ 110.5(b)(1), (2); 1977 Opinion F.E.C. 24, 1 Fed.
Election Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) ¥ 5260, at 10,207 (June
28, 1977); 1985 Opinion F.E.C. 5, 1 Fed. Election Camp.
Fin. Guide (CCH) 93 5810 (Mareh 6, 1985).

Since plaintiff's claims of violation of
the FRLA and the federal bribery statute have no merit
in fact or law and plaintiff concedes he does not charge
a violation of the FECA, plaintiff's reliance upon

state common law is to no avail.
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Thé preemption provision of the FECA, 2 U.S.C.
§ 453, explicitly nullified any inconsistent provision

of state law regulating the election of federal officers.
If plaintiff's complaint relies upon the application

of state common law to either avoid the exclusive primary
jurisdiction®/ of the FEC or to, in any way, diminish

the effect of the FECA provisions and regulations enacted
thereunder, such reliance is misplaced. Where, as

in the instant case, the plaintiff does not claim that
the defendants violated any provisions of the FECA

in administering the GE/PAC, defendants are insulated

by their conforming behavior from any end run attacks
based upon state law. This is the meaning of federal
preemption. When a person acts according to the dictates
of federal law, in an area where Congress has expressly
preempted the areas of concern, state statutes or the
common law cannot create liability for damages for

these same acts nor in any way diminish or interfere

with the exercise of federally created rights.

*/ The doctrine of primary jurisdiction is designed
to allocate the power of courts and administrative
agencies to make initial determinations. 4 K. Davis,
Administrative Law Treatise § 22.1 (2d Ed. 1983).
Congress created the FEC as a body which would have
particular expertise concerning the application of

the FECA to disputes and vested in the FEC primary
jurisdiction to resolve competing claims. Judicial
authority may only be invoked after the FEC has acted.
2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8). '

12
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Where the corporate action complained of
is authorized by federal law, "state law to the contrary
is nullifléd to the éxteng it actually conflicts with

federal law."‘vFldellty Federal Savings & Loan Association

v. De La Cuesta, 458 U.S. 141, 153 (1982).

qu‘all of the above reasons, defendants
motion to dismiss the Co@plaint is granted, the complaint
is dismissed.

It Is So Ordered.

Dated: New York, New York
May .-7/. 1987

L <o {/7_____
United St Eg District Judge

13
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGION, D C 2046) 4, 1988

Sharon Katz

Davis, Polk & Wardwell
1 Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, N.Y. 10005

RE: MUR 2682
General Electric Co.

Dear Ms. Katz:

This is in response to your letter dated September 14,
1988, which we received on September 19, 1988, regarding an
extension of 10 days until October 7, 1988, to respond to a
complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by Philip
M. Stern against General Electric Company, the General Electric
Officers and Directors.

While it is customary for such requests to be
affirmatively made in writing, I have interpreted your
September 14, 1988, letter as such a formal request. After
considering the circumstances presented in your telephone and
written contacts with this office, I have granted the requested
extension. Accordingly, your response is due by the close of
business on October 7, 1988.

I1f you have any questions, please contact Jim Brown, the
staff member assigned to this matter, at (202) 376-8200.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

L

BY: Lois G./ Lerner
Associate General Counsel



DAvisS POLK & WARDWELL

| CHASE MANHATTAN PLAZA

NEw York,N. Y. (10008
212-830-4000

PETER O. A. SOLBERT
JOHN P. CARROLL,UR,
VALLIAM A.RAYNOR
HENRY L. N0
RICHARD 8. SMITH
EDWIN DEANE LEONARD
BRUCE W. NICHOLS
SAMUEL F. PAVOR, il

JAMES WOODMAN LLOYD
BARTLETY K. MOQGUIRE
SYEPHEN K. CASE
FRANCIS J. MORIBON
FRANK 8. MOSRLEY
JEPFAREY SMALL

DAVID C.OXMAN

WILLIAM PARSONS, UR.

QL W6\

JEROME Q. SNIDER
WILLIAM €. WURT2
HOWARD A. BLLINS
PATRICR 8. RENADJIAN
WILLIAM HOWARD wWeiomL
SEVEARLY PANGER CHASE
REITH L. REARNEY

PETER C. RORNMAN

ROBERT 8. FISAE, UR.
EDWARD 8. RETID

PHILIP C. FOTYER, UR.
JAMES F. DOLAN
RMICHARD . NOLAN

M. CARR FERGUSON, UR.
JOHN A. CORRY
MCHARD O. SMZZIRRY
ALLAN A.A.PLYNN
CHARLES 8. HOPPIN
TROLAND 8. LINK
HERSEIAT M. LOBL

JOMN J. MCATER, JR.

CHARLES 8. WHITMAN, 10
LEWIS 8. RADEN

WILLIAM C. GIFFORD
ARTHUR F. GOLDEN
STEVEN . GOLDSTONE
DENNIS 8. HERSCH
WINTHROP B. CONRAD, JR.

JAMES P. LAWTON

SCOTT W. MULLER

WILLIAM L. ROSOFF

GEORGE R. BASON, UR.

DONALD 8. SERNSTEIN

ALAN DEAN

JOHN R, ETTINGER

RICHARD MOK (D.C.9AR ONLY)

JAMES D. PHYFE

€. WAIDE WARNER, UR.

THOMAS PATRICK BORE.JUR.

QAVID W. FEROUSON

AVIBHAL SHACHAR

LINOA A.SIMPSON

DAVID M. WELLS

D. $COTT Wisk

PAUL W. BARTEL. 1

A. DRUCKER
DENNIS €. GLAZER

MAYER EDWARD J. RELLY, Il (D.C.8aR ONLY)

MERRT ox SAINT PHALLE PALL KUMLEBEN

ROBEAT J. LEVINE RAREN £. WAGNER

JOHNM J. MCCARTHY, JR.

TELEX: (TT-4R134)
TELECOMER: 8i12-830-4800

400 PARR AVENUE
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10022

4, PLACE DE LA  CONCORDE
78008 PARIS
LOWELL GORODON HARRISS

W 7. RROENER, th
RICHARD J. SANDLER
ROBERT F. WISE, UN.
JOMN R COONEY, UR.
ROBEAT LEE HECKART
OGDEN N.LEWS
BRADLEY V. SMITH
MIKEL M. ROLLYSON
MARLENE ALVA

PETER R AS
JOHN FOUNEY

1878 I STREEY, N. W.
WASHINGTON, D. C. 20008

| FREDERICKS PLACE
LONDON EC2R 84D

TOKRIO RANO BUILDING SHINKAN
2-1, MARUNOUCH! 1-CHOME
CHIYODA=-RU, TORYD 100

WRITER'S DIRECT NUMBER:

(212) 530-4508

October 6, 1988

AT TN s
IR E R

Re: MUR 2682 - General Electric Company and Directors

Lois G. Lerner

Associate General Counsel
Federal Election Commission
1325 K Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20463

(we]
@D
(o }
G0,
e
1
~d
=
()

£e

Dear Ms. Lerner:

Enclosed for filing are an original signed .
affidavit and memorandum of law in response to the complaint
in the above referenced matter.

Sincerely,

7
7 éu«‘vu»\ "JL
Sharon Katz

cc: Martin F. Connor
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF THE
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY File No. MUR-2682

AND EACH OF ITS OFFICERS
AND DIRECTORS

AFFIDAVIT

DAVIS POLK & WARDWELL

1l Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, New York 10005
(212) 530-4000




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF THE

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY File No. MUR-2682
AND EACH OF ITS OFFICERS

AND DIRECTORS

RERTTE Y

U3AA034

CITY OF WASHINGTON )
8s8.:

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA )

P AN

GE:¢lHd [-13088

Phillips Peter, being duly sworn states:

-
\

N
»
=)

1. I am Vice President -~ Corporate Government
Relations of the General Electric Company ("GE"), in which
capacity I am responsible for, among other things, the overall
administration of the General Electric Company Political
Action Committee ("GE/PAC").

2. The GE/PAC was established by GE in 1975 as a
"separate segregated fund" under the provisions of the Federal
Election Campaign Act. It has been registered with the FEC

since that time.

3. The GE/PAC solicits voluntary contributions

from GE management personnel and distributes those funds as




campaign expenditures or contributions in connection with
federal elections. None of the funds distributed by the
GE/PAC as contributions or expenditures made in connection
with federal elections are provided by GE.

4. GE management employees who contribute to the
GE/PAC may specify the candidates or political parties to
which their contributions are to be distributed. Otherwise,
decisions regarding distribution are left to the discretion of
those employees who operate the GE/PAC.

S Since its inception the GE/PAC has received
contributions each year from more than 50 individuals and has
distributed those contributions to more than five federal
candidates.

6. All of the individually named respondents were
members of the Board of Directors during 1986 and, except for
James G. Boswell and Silas S. Cathcart, are currently members
of the Board. Messrs. Welch, Bossidy, and Hood are also
officers of the Company. None of the individually named
respondents have had any role whatsoever in the operation of
the GE/PAC or the distribution by it of contributed funds.
The Board of Directors has, since the establishment of the
GE/PAC, voted to provide it with administrative funding.

7. Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of a complaint

filed on or about May 21, 1986 in the United States District
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Court for the Southern District of New York by Philip Stern
against GE and the then current members of the Board of Direc-
tors.

8. Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of the Memoran-
dum Opinion and Order of District Court Judge Mary Johnson
Lowe, dated May 4, 1987, dismissing that complaint for failure
to state a claim and as subject to the primary jurisdiction of

B S B

the Commission.

qu&n to before me this
5 * day of October, 1988

otary lic

Janis Hickok
Notavy‘Po_:blic, Drstrict of Columbia
My Commission Exreos lanyary | 1993
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

PHILIP M. STERN, s

Plaintiff, :
VERIFIED
-~against- :+  COMPLAINT

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, JOHN F. WELCH, s 86 Civ.
JR., LAWRENCE A. BOSSIDY, EDWARD E. HOOD,

JR., RICHARD T. BAKER, JAMES G. BOSWELL II,: PLAINTIEF
SILAS C, CATHCART, CHARLES D. DICKEY, JR., DEMANDS
LAWRENCE E. FOURAKER, HENRY H. HENLEY, JR.,: TRIAL BY
HENRY L. HILLMAN, ROBERT E. MERCER, JURY

GERTRUDE G. MICHELSON, BARBARA SCOTT
PREISKEL, LEWIS T. PRESTON, FRANK H.T.
RHODES, ANDREW C. SIGLER, and WALTER B.
WRISTON.

Defendants. )
-------------- - ® o o o o o =}

Plaintiff, by his undersigned attorneys, for his

complaint against defendants herein alleges:

1. Jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court by
Section 1332 of the Judicial Code (28 U.S.C. § 1332). The
amount in controversy exceeds $10,000.

2. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of
himself and all other shareholders of General Electric
Company similarly situated, and fairly and adequately
represents the interests of the shareholders similary
situated.

3. Plaintiff is now and was at the time of the

transactions herein complained of a shareholder of the
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defendant General Electric Company, holding S00 shares its
common stock in his own name, and 2400 shares beneficially
through two family trusts, with a total value in excess of
$50,000. '

4. This action is not a collusive one to confer on
a court of the United States jurisdiction of any action of

which it would not otherwise have jurisdiction.
S. On information and belief, each of the

defendants named above either:
(a) Participated in the actions, transactions,
conduct and practices complained of in this complaint; and/or
(b) Approved, agreed and conspired with respect to
the actions, transactions, conduct and practices complained

of in this complaint; and/or
(c) Aided and abetted, in a knowing and willful

manner, said actions, transactions, conduct and practices;

and/or

(d) Was negligent and derelict in his or her duty
to exercise dus care to protect the interests of the

corporation.

THE PARTIES
6. Plaintiff is a resident of the District of
Columbia. He brings this action derivatively on behalf of

the corporate defendant.
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7. Defendant General Electric Company is
incorporated in the State of New York, and has a principal

place of business here. )
8. Defendant John F. Welch, Jr. is Chairman of the

Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of General
Electric Company and is a resident of Connecticut.

9. Defendant Lawrence A. Bossidy is Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors and an Executive Officer of General
Electric Company and is a resident of Connecticut.

10. Defendant Edward E. Hood, Jr., is Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors and an Executive Officer of General
Electric Company and is a resident of Connecticut.

11. Defendants Richard T. Baker (Ohio), James G.
Boswell II (California), Silas C. Cathcart (Illinois),
Charles D. Dickey, Jr. (Pennsylvania), Lawrence E. Fouraker
(Massachusetts), Henry H. Henley, Jr. (New York), Henry L.
Hillman (Pennsylvania), Robert E. Mercer (Ohio), Gertrude G.
Michelson (New York) Barbara Scott Preiskel (New York), Lewis
T. Preston (New York), Frank H.T. Rhodes (New York), Andrew
C. Sigler (Connecticut) and Walter B. Wriston (New York), are
all Directors of General Electric Company and are residents,

respectively, of the states indicated after each of their

names.
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BACKGROUND

12. 1In 1972, Congress enacted the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971 (PL 92-225) which 1nc1ud9d a provision
(now incorporated in 2 U.S.C. § 441 b(b)(2)(C)) expressly
authorizing the expenditure of corporate treasury funds for
"the establishment, administration, and solicitation of
contributions to a separate segregated fund [PAC) to be
utilized for political purposes...." (Emphasis added.) The
legislative history of the provision, known as the "Hansen
Amendment"”, clearly shows that its purpose was to facilitate
the collection of voluntary contributions to be used by the
corporation to support electioneering activities.
Congressman Hansen, sponsor of the amendment, stated on the
floor of the House during debate on the bill that the statute

was not designed to cover corporate legislative activities,

and that lobbying was to continue to be subject to separate
regulation.

13. In 1975, the General Electric Company
established the "Non-Partisan Political Support Commitee for
General Electric Employees" (originally called the
"Non-Partisan Political Support Committee" and hereinafter
referred to as "GE/PAC"). Since that time, on information
and belief, General Electric‘s management has expended
substantial sums from the corporation's treasury for the

administration of GE/PAC and for the solicitation of GE/PAC




contributions from GE executives and administrative
personnel.

14. As oporatod.undcr the management of General
Electric Company the GE/PAC has been converted from an
instrument of political electioneering activity to one of
legislative activity, in direct violation of the explicit
intent and purpose of the statute. Such misuse of the GE/PAC
is evidenced by the nature of its expenditures during the
1983-1984 election cycle:

(a) GE/PAC gave funds totalling $109,125 to
committees for incumbent Congressmen during the calendar year
1983, which was a non-election year. At that time, there
were virtually no opposition candidates publicly announced
and therefore no opportunity to choose which candidates
GE/PAC might wish to support on the merits in the upcoming
1984 election;

(b) GE/PAC paid over funds to the committees for
27 incumbent House Members who had no opponents at &ll in the
general election, 18 of whom had no primary opposition
either;

(c) GE/PAC made payments to committees for 103
incumbent Members of the U.S. House of Representatives who
were virtually guaranteed re-election (winning by 70% or more
of the vote);

(d) Overall, 98.5% of the GE/PAC payments went to

committees for incumbent House Members who ran for




re-election in 1984. In the 1983-1984 cycle, GE/PAC
contributed to challengers in only 3 out of 210 races prior
to the 1984 election in wﬁich an incumbent was running for
re-election.

(e) In 2 of the 1984 House races, GE/PAC
contributed to challengers after the election, when they
turned out to be the winners.

(f£) GE/PAC payments were made to committees for
incumbent House Members without regard for their voting
records or public positions on business issues. Eighty-six
(86) of the 203 incumbent House Members who received GE/PAC
funds had approval ratihqa of less than 40X from the U.S.
Chamber of Commerce. Fourteen (14) had approval ratings of

099 4

30% or less. Moreover, many of those who received GE/PAC

3

funds had high approval ratings from the ADA and AFL-CIO,
whose legislative ratings generally reflect an anti-business
viewpoint.

(g) GE/PAC made payments to every Senate incumbent

running for re-election in 1984. In not a single instance

~
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did GE/PAC consider the challenger preferable to the
incumbent, although in three states, (Illinois, Iowa and
North Carolina) GE/PAC paid funds to the committees for
both incumbents and challengers.

(h) GE/PAC made payments to committees for elaeaven

(11) Senators who were assured of re-election and effectively

had no contest (winning by 70% or more).
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(1) Four of the Senators who received funds from
GE/PAC had overall approval ratings by the U.S. Chamber of
Commerce of less than 49:; twvo of whom were below 20%.

(3j) GE/PAC alsc made contributions during
1983-1984 to eighteen (18) members of the Senate whose terms
of office did not even expire during the period and therefore

who had no election races at'ill during those years.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
1S. Many, if not most, GE/PAC payments have been

indiscriminately turned over for the benefit of incumbent
Members of Congress without regard to their position on
legislative issues of concern to the corporation. No benefit
has been realized by the corporation from these payments, and
the expenditure of corporate funds to solicit and administer

them has constituted a waste of corporate assets.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
16. Management's use of GE/PAC funds has been
intended to buy influence and build good will for
legislative purposes rather than to choose between candidates
on their merits to: political electioneering purposes.
Expenditures of corporate funds for the solicitation and
administration of PAC funds to be used for such purposes

constitute expenditures made with the intent of influencing,

directly or indirectly, the passage or defeat of legislation
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by the Congress of the United States. As such, those
expenditures are required to be reported under the Federal
Regulation of Lobbying Act, Title 2 U.S.C. Section 261

et seg, and to be disclosed to the public, including the
Corporation stockholders. Defendants have wholly failed to
comply with those reporting requirements.

17. In addition to the failure to disclose the
expenditure of corporate funds in support of Congressional
lobbying activities, defendants have compounded that unlawful
conduct by permitting or directing the corporation's
lobbyists to file incomplete and misleading lobbying reports
which fail to reveal the corporation's specific legislative
interests, as required by 2 U.S.C. § 267, th,roby frustrating
the public disclosure intended by such statute.

18. Each failure to file a report of expenditures
for legislative purposes and each failure to properly
disclose information concerning specific legislative
interests constitutes a misdeameanor under 2 U.S.C. § 269,
punishable in each case by a fine of not more than $5,000
and/or imprisonment for not more than twelve months. In
addition, a conviction for such violation automatically
prohibits the violator from carrying on any lobbying
activities in Congress or from appearing before any Committee
of Congress in support of or in opposition to proposed

legislation for a period of three years.
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19. Defendants, by authorizing, directing and
acquiescing in such unlawful conduct in violation of the
Federal Regulation of Lobbying Act have breached their
fiduciary obligations to the corporation and io its
stockholders, have negligently wasted corporate assets, have
exposed officers, employees and legislative representatives
of the corporation to potential prosecution and punishment,
and have exposed the corporation itself to potential
penalties which could seriously affect its future economic

welfare.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

20. On information and belief, the timing and
circumstances of GE/PAC fund payments to committees for
certain incumbent Members of Congress and particularly_to
those who are permitted by law (2 U.S.C. § 439a) to apply
excess campaign contributions for their personal use when
they retire from Congress, are potential grounds for the
institution of criminal prosecution as unlawful payments of
compensation to Members of Congress for services rendered or
to be rendered, in violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 203. A
violation of that statute is punishable by a fine of not more
than $10,000 and/or imprisonment for not more than two years,
and permanent bar from any U.S. office of honor, trust or

profict.
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21. Defendants, by authorizing, directing and
acquiescing in activities which may result in future
prosecutions have breached their fiduciary oyliqntions to the
corporation and its stockholders, have wasted cororate
assets, and have oxpo:ﬁd officers and employees of the
corporation to potential prosecution and punishment. They
have also exposed the corporation to the potential
disallowance of the deductibility of such expenditures for
tax purposes under Section 162 of the Internal Revenue Code
as constituting funds used in facilitating the payment of

unlawful bribes.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION -

22. On information and belief, the level of
expenditures of corporate funds for the administration of,
and solicitation of contributions for the GE/PAC have been
unreasonable and excessive in relation to the amount of
contributions collected, and have constituted an improper use

and waste of corporate assets.

EFFORTS TO SECURE ACTION FROM DIRECTORS

23. On January 30, 1986, plaintiff caused to be
delivered to the Directors of General Electric Company a
demand that the Board of Directors investigate the aforesaid
unlawful use of corporate funds. Plaintiff demanded that the

Directors take the necessary steps to prevent further use of




corporate funds for the operation of Political Action
Committees, and to recover for the corporation, by whatever
means necessary, the company funds wasted. J

24. The Directors of General Electric Company have
failed and refused to take appropriate action to prevent the
further waste of corporate funds, or to obtain redress on
behalf of the corporation for the funds which have been
wasted in the past.

25. By letter dated April 29, 1986, GE's senior
vice president, general counsel and secretary informed
plaintiff through counsel that the Board of Directors had
considered plaintiff's demand of January 30, 1986 at a
regular meeting, and did not feel it was desirable or
appropriate to "interfere with the free decisions of the

participants in this program."™ This response itself
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demonstrates the deception and fraud with which these
activities have been and are still being carried on. On
information and belief, the bulk of the payments made out of

the GE/PAC have not been the "free decisions of the

R 9 0 4

participants® in the program but have been decisions made by
management and the managers of GE/PAC explicitly for

legislative purposes and in plain violation of law.
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RELIEF REQUESTED
WHEREFORE, plaintiff demands judgment:

(a) Requiring defendants other than General
Electric Company jointly and severally to account and pay
over to General Electric Company all corporate funds
improperly expended on the administration of and solicitatioen
of contributions for GE/PAC;

(b) Prohibiting further use of corporate funds for
GE/PAC or any other Political Action Committee; and

(c) Granting plaintiff the reasonable costs and
disbursements incident to the prosecution of this action,

including reasonable attorneys fees.

New York, New York
May 21, 1986

100 Park Avinue, Room
New York, Nel York 1001\
(212) $S99-0068

Attorneys for Plaintiff

e12-




VERIFICATION

DISTRICT OF )
8.8.:
COLUMBIA )

PHILIP M. STERN, being duly sworn, deposes and
says:
1. I am the plaintiff in this action.

2. 1 have read the foregoing complaint and know

the contents thereof.

3. The same is true to the best of my knowledge
and belief.

N0

3

Sworn to before me this
/¥ day of May, 1986

y

ve. Cermiion Expizas A¢

otary uﬁlic
o-3 31: ‘956
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

PHILIP M. STERN,

Plaintift,
- against -

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, JOHN F.
WELCH, JR., LAWRENCE A. BOSSIDY,
EDWARD E. HOOD, JR., RICHARD T.
BAKER, JAMES G. BOSWELL II,

SILAS C. CATHCART, CHARLES D.
DICKEY, JR., LAWRENCE E. FOURAKER,
HENRY H. HENLEY, JR., HENRY L.
HILIMAN, ROBERT E. MERCER, GERTRUDE
G. MICHELSON, BARBARA SCOTT
PREISKEL, LEWIS T. PRESTON,

FRANK H.T. RHODES, ANDREW C.
SIGLER, and WALTER B. WRISTON,

Defendants.

BROWN & SEYMOUR

Attorneys for Plaintiff
100 Park Avenue )
New York., New York 10017

BY: PETER M. BROWN, ESQ.
DAVIS POLK & WARDWELL
Attorneys For Defendants

One Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, New York 1000S

BY: BY: ROBERT B. FISKE, JR.

JAMES BRUCE ESQ.

MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER
86 Civ. 4055 (MJL)

Antitrust and Litigation Counsel

General Electric Company
Fairfield Connecticut 06431




MARY JOHNSON LOWE, D. J.

Plaintiff commenced this derivative action
on behalf of himself and all other shareholders of
General Electric ("GE") who are similarly situated.
This action is brought under the diversity jurisdiction
of this court.

Defendant GE and its directors have moved
pursuant to Fed.R.Civ. P. 12(b)(6) to dismiss the
complaint for failure to state a claim for which relief
can be granted and pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 12(b)(1)
for lack of subject matter jurisdiction.

Plaintiff alleges in this complaint that
since 1975, GE has expended substantial sums from the
corporation's treasury for the solicitation of contributions

to, and the administration of the "Non-Partisan Political

Support Committee for General Electric Employees"™ ("GE/PAC").




The verified complaint alleges four causes

of action:

(1) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board

of Directors (the "Board") in wasting corporate
assets by authorizing, directing and acquiescing
in GE/PAC payments made to incumbent members

of Congress without regard to their position

on legislative issues of concern to GEj;

(2) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board
in authorizing, directing and acquiescing
in violations of the Federal Regulation of
Lobbying Act;

(3) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board
in authorizing, directing and acquiescing

in violations of the prohibitions against

bribing Members of Congress; and

‘" (4) Breach of fiduciary duty by the Board's
excessive expenditures of corporate funds

cC for the administration of, and solicitation
of contributions for GE/PAC.

N

The complaint alleges, in part that:

~) In 1972, Congress enacted the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971 (PL 92-225) which included

a provision (now incorporated in 2 U.S.C.
§441b(b)(2)(C)) expressly authorizing the
expenditure of corporate treasury funds for

"the establishment, administration, and solicitation
of contributions to a separate segregated

fund [PAC] to be utilized for political purposes.

Complaint, 912 (emphasis in original). The complaint

B3040 7

further states that:




Ele ¢ Company the GE/PAC has n converted
from an instrument of political €lectioneering
activity to one of legislative activity,

in direct violation o% the explicit intent

and purpose of the statute. Such misuse

of the GE/PAC is evidenced by the nature

of its expenditures during the 1983-1984
election cyecle.

As oggrated under the managementnf General

Complaint, 914 (emphasis in original).
Plaintiff asks this court to issue an order:
(a) Requiring defendants other than General
Electric Company jointly and severally to
account and pay over to General Electric
Company all corporate funds improperly expended
on the administration of and solicitation
of contributions for GE/PAC;
(b) Prohibiting further use of corporate

funds for GE/PAC or any other Political Action
Committee; and

(¢c) Granting plaintiff the reasonable costs
and disbursements incident to the prosecution
of this action, including reasonable attorneys
fees.
Complaint, p. 12.
Defendants move to dismiss the complaint
on three grounds. First, the defendants argue that
the complaint fails because all of the alleged acts
of the GE/PAC are legal and proper under the Federal
Election Campaign Act ("FECA"), the regulations promulgated

thereunder, and every other statute cited in the complaint.

Second, they contend that a private party has no standing

under the FECA, or under any of the other federal laws
cited in the complaint to seek the relief plaintiffs
requests. Third, the defendants assert that the complaint
fails because all of the alleged actions of the individual
defendants were properly within their sound business

judgment.®/

*/ Because of our disposition under defendants' arguments
one and two above, we do not reach the business judgment

rule. 4
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Discussion

A motion to dismiss a complaint should not
be granted unless it appears to a certainty that the
plaintiff would not be entitled to relief under any
state of facts which could be proved in support of
the claim. In addition, the complaint must be viewed
in the light most favorable to the plaintiff and the
truth of all facts well pleaded, admitted. Costello,

et al. v. Town of Fairfield, Nos. 342, 393, slip. op.

at 1482 (2d Cir. February 12, 1987).

The essence of plaintiff's complaint is his
allegation that the legislative history of the FECA
discloses that its purpose was to facilitate the collection .
of voluntary contributions to be used by a corporation
PAC for the support of electioneering activities.

Plaintiff alleges that Congressman Hansen, sponsor

of the bill, stated on the floor of the House that

the statute was not designed to cover corporate legislative
activities and lobbying. Defendant directors, plaintiff
complains, have unlawfully operated the PAC by expending
its funds for legislative activity, lobbying, and bribery

in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 203, thereby wasting corporate

assets and breaching their fiduciary duties.
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Plaintiff brings his action under the diversity
jurisdiction of this court alleging state common law
claims. The apparent reason for plaintiff's reliance
on state law is that the action would be barred if
plaintiff attempted to directly attack the operation
of the GE/PAC as being in violation of the FECA since
Congress has decreed that the Federal Election Commission

("FEC") has exclusive initial jurisdiction over alleged

violations of the Act.®/

*/ A person who believes that the Act has been violated
must first file a complaint with FEC. In cases where
the FEC determines that the complaint is supported

by probable cause, the FEC must attempt to correct

or prevent the alleged violation "by informeal methods

of conference, conciliation, and persuasion...” 2
U.S.C. §437g(a)(4). 1If conciliation fails, the FEC

may institute a civil action for relief. 2 U.S.C.

§437g(a)(8).

The complainant may bring an action against the FEC

in federal court where the FEC has dismissed the complaint

or failed to act on it within 120 days. 2 U.S.C. §437g(a)(8)(A).
Where the court finds that the FEC acted "in a manner

contrary to law", it may direct the FEC to conform

to the law within 30 days. If the FEC fails to comply

with the court's directives, the complainant may bring

a civil action to remedy the violation. 2 U.S.C.
$437g(a)(8)(C).
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Plaintiff may believe he is entitled to invoke
the jurisdiction of this court by reliance on obiter
dicta in Corte v. Ash, 422 U.S. 66, 84 (1974). In
that case, Ash, a stockholder in Bethlehem Steel Corporation,
brought a derivative action seeking an injunction and
damages claiming that the corporate directors had authorized
expenditure of general corporate funds for political
purposes in the 1972 presidential election. Ash claimed
that this use of corporate funds was a violation of
18 U.S.C. § 610.2/ Since Section 610 was a criminal
statute, Ash asked the court to imply a private remedy
for the criminal violation. After stating its reasons

why a private cause of action would not be implied,

the court said:

*/ Ash also alleged pendant claims that the use of
corporate funds was ultra vires and a breach of the
directors' fiduciary duty. For reasons not material
here, the pendant claims were dropped before appeal
to the circuit court.




Fourth, and finally, for reasons already
Intimated, it is entirely appropriate in

this instance to relegate respondent and

others in his situation to whatever remedy

is created by state law. In addition to

the ultra vires action presented here, [cite
omi tted] the use of corporate funds in violation
of federal law may, under the law of some
States, give rise to a cause of action for
breach of fiduciary duty. See e.g.., Miller

v. American Telephone & Telegraph Co., 507

F.2d 759 (3rd Cir. 1074). Corporations are
creatures of state law, and investors comnmit
their funds to corporate directors on the
understanding that, except where federal

law expressly requires certain responsibilities
of directors with respect to stockholders,
state law will govern the internal affairs

of the corporation.

Ash, 422 U.S. at 84.
Plaintiff, in order to bring himself within

the Corte v. Ash dictum must allege that these defendants

used corporate funds in violation of federal law and

that such use gives rise to a cause of action under
the law of New York for breach of fiduciary duty.

This plaintiff has failed to do.
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Plaintiff argues that:

There is nothing in the Verified Complaint
alleging violations of the FECA. As noted
above, the Verified Complaint charges the
Board with breaches of their fiduciary duties
for directing and abetting violations of
their common law responsibilities as well
as the disclosure requirements of the Federal
Regulation of Lobbying Act ("FRLA")(®*/] and bribery
statutes.

(Plaintiff's Brief In Opposition, p. 17).

®/ The FRLA, 2 U.S.C. §§ 261-270, established a reporting

and disclosure system with respect to persons engaged

in lobbying activities. 2 U.S.C. §§266, 267; United

States v. Harris, 347 U.S. 612, 620, 623 (1954’ Specifically
excluded from the provisions of the FRLA are "political
committee(s] as defined in the Federal Corrupt Practices

Act" (repealed and replaced by the FECA). 2 U.S.C.

§ 266. Furthermore, the provisions of the FRLA do

"not applf to practices or activities regulated by

the [FECA]." 2 U.S.C. § 270.
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Plaintiff's claims that the defendants have
violated the FRLA and federal bribery statutes have
no merit.
FRLA
Plaintiff contends that:
Defendants urge that since GE/PAC is a separate
segregated fund established under FECA, |t
is exempt from the registration and disclosure
requirements of FRLA. While this is true
as to the PAC, the argument misses the point
of the Verified Complaint, namely, that the
corporation is not exempt from FRLA, and
GE's expenditure of corporate funds for the
solicitation and administration of GE/PAC
to be used principally to influence the passage
or defeat of legislation constitutes expenditures
which must be reported under FRLA.
(Plaintiff's Brief In Opposition, p. 9).
This argument misses the mark. The GE/PAC
is a "political committee", 2 U.S.C. § 266. As such
its activities are regulated by the FECA, and not the
FRLA, 2 U.S.C. § 270. 1If plaintiff's complaint is
that corporate funds used to administer the GE/PAC
are expended improperly by the GE/PAC for lobbying
purposes, this is precisely the type of complaint the
FEC was designed to adjudicate. Plaintiff may not
raise this claim in the first instance in the district

court. 2 U.S.C. §437q(a)(4).

10




5

899407

Bribery
Plaintiff's claim that the GE/PAC's distribution

of funds to incumbent congressmen in non-election
years constitutes bribery is inconsistent with the
regulations and rulings of the FEC. See, 11 C.F.R.
§ 110.5(b)(1), (2); 1977 Opinion FP.E.C. 24, 1 Fed.
Election Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) ¥ 5260, at 10,207 (June
28, 1977); 1985 Opinion F.E.C. 5, 1 Fed. Election Camp.
Fin. Guide (CCH) 13 5810 (March 8, 1985).

Since plaintiff's claims of violation of
the FRLA and the federal bribery statute have no merit
in fact or law and plaintiff concedes he does not charge
a violation of the PECA, plaintiff's reliance upon

state common law is to no avail.

11
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The preemption provision of the FECA, 2 U.S.C.
§ 453, explicitly nullified any inconsistent provision
of state law regulating the election of federal officers.
If plaintiff's complaint relies upon the application

of state coomon law to either avoid the exclusive primary
jurisdiction®/ of the FEC or to, in any way, diminish

the effect of the PECA provisions and regulations enacted
thereunder, such reliance is misplaced. Where, as

in the instant case, the plaintiff does not claim that
the defendants violated any provisions of the FECA

in administering the GE/PAC, defendants are insulated

by their conforming behavior from any end run attacks
based upon state law. This is the meaning of federal
preemption. When a person acts according to the dictates
of federal law, in an area where Congress has expressly
preempted the areas of concern, state statutes or the
common law cannot create liability for damages for

these same acts nor in any way diminish or interfere

with the exercise of federally created rights.

®/ The doctrine of primary jurisdiction is designed
to allocate the power of courts and administrative
agencies to make initial determinations. 4 K. Davis,
Administrative Law Treatise § 22.1 (2d Ed. 1983).
Congress created the FEC as a body which would have
particular expertise concerning the application of

the FECA to disputes and vested in the FEC primary
jurisdiction to resolve competing claims. Judicial
authority may only be invoked after the FEC has acted.
2 U.S.C.” § 437g(a)(8).

12
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Where the corporate action complained of
is authorized by federal law, "state law to the contrary

i{s nullified to the extent it actually conflicts with
federal law." Fidelity Pederal Savings & Loan Association
v. De La Cuesta, 458 U.S. 141, 153 (1982).

For all of the above reasons, defendants
motion to dismiss the Complaint is granted, the complaint
is dismissed.

It Is So Ordered.

Dated: New York, New York
May 70 1987 I

United St 5; District Judge
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IN THE MATTER OF THE
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY File No. MUR-2682
AND EACH OF ITS OFFICERS
AND DIRECTORS

MEMORANDUM ON BEHALF OF
RESPONDENTS GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
AND EACH OF ITS OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

The General Electric Company and each of the
individual respondents (collectively "GE")* submit this
memorandum of law in response to a letter from the Federal
Election Commission ("the Commission") dated September 6,
1988, advising GE of a complaint filed by Philip A. Stern
alleging that GE violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of
1971, as amended (the "FECA"), and inviting GE's response to
that complaint.

Simply stated, the complaint has no merit. It fails

to set forth any violation of the FECA or to state any reason

* Of the individual respondents named by the Complaint, James
G. Boswell II and Silas S. Cathcart are no longer members of
the Board of Directors of the General Electric Company.




to believe that any violation is likely to occur. The Commis-

sion's file in this matter should therefore be closed.*

FACTS

A. The Background and Operation of the GE/PAC

The GE/PAC is a political action committee which
solicits voluntary contributions from GE management personnel
and distributes those funds as campaign expenditures or con-
tributions in connection with federal elections. GE estab-
lished the GE/PAC in 1975 as a "separate segregated fund"
under the provisions of the FECA. While the FECA generally
prohibits corporations from making campaign contributions or
expenditures in connection with federal elections, see 2
U.S.C. § 441b(a) (1982), it specifically authorizes the expen-

diture of corporate funds for "the establishment, administra-

* In 1986, Philip Stern filed a complaint in the United

States District Court for the Southern District of New York, a
copy of which is attached as Exhibit A to the affidavit of
Phillips Peter (the "Peter Aff."), in which he alleged that in
1984 the GE/PAC had made contributions identical to the types
of contributions which he now alleges in this complaint vio-
late the FECA. The complaint filed in the District Court
alleged that these contributions violated the Federal Regula-
tion of Lobbying Act and federal bribery statutes. Mr. Stern
conceded in the District Court that he had not alleged viola-
tions of the FECA, Peter Aff. Ex. B p. 11, and the District
Court, in dismissing the complaint for failure to state a
claim and as subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission,
found that GE and the individual defendants were "insulated by
their conforming behavior from any end run attacks based upon
state law." Peter Aff. Ex. B p. 12.




tion, and solicitation of contributions to a separate
segregated fund to be utilized for political purposes . . . ."
2 U.S.C. § 441b(b) (2) (C) (1982). Separate segregated funds
such as the GE/PAC are included under the FECA's definition of
"political committee," 2 U.S.C. § 431(4) (B) (1982).

None of the funds distributed by the GE/PAC as
contributions or expenditures made in connection with federal
elections are provided by GE. Such funds are comprised solely
of contributions from GE management personnel. GE management
employees may specify the candidates or political parties to
which their contributions are to be distributed, or leave the
decisions regarding distribution to the discretion of those
employees who operate the GE/PAC. None of the individually
named respondents, all of whom are members of the GE Board of
Directors and some of whom are also members of GE's Executive
Office, have any role whatsoever in the operation of the

GE/PAC or the distribution by it of contributed funds.

B. The Nature of the Allegations of the Complaint

The complaint alleges that GE violated the FECA by
"misusing" the GE/PAC. The nature of the alleged "misuse" is
not clear. The complaint does not allege acts constituting
violations of the FECA or any of the rules promulgated there-
under. Indeed, as shown below, each of the allegations in the

complaint describes activities explicitly authorized by or
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consistent with the FECA and the regulations.

The complaint alleges that the GE/PAC has been
"converted from an instrument of political electioneering
activity to one of legislative activity." (Complaint p. 2;
emphasis in original). The basis for the allegation is that
in 1986, the GE/PAC:

(1) gave money to House candidates who

either faced no opponent or who
"could be predicted to coast to easy
victories" (complaint p. 2);

gave money to a Senate candidate
whose average approval rating by the
U.S. Chamber of Commerce was 12.8%,
while his opponent's rating was 74%

in 1984 and 100% in 1983 (complaint
p- 3):

contributed funds to opposing can-
didates in six Senate elections
(complaint p. 3):

(4) made post-election contributions to
candidates who won their elections
(complaint p. 3); and

(5) made contributions to incumbents in
212 out of 214 House contests and in
27 Senate races (complaint p. 3).

The complaint urges the Commission to find that by
engaging in these perfectly legal, commonplace activities,
GE violated the FECA by establishing and administering the
GE/PAC, because, the complaint states, the distributions set
forth above did not serve "bona fide political purposes"

(complaint p. 4; emphasis in original). The complaint would




like the Commission to reach beyond the FECA and its regula-
tions to establish criteria setting forth a limited number of
"bona fide political purposes™ that would dictate which par-
ticular candidates may receive contributions from corporate
political action committees, and that would classify non-
conforming contributions as prohibited "legislative" activity.

There is no basis for such action.

ARGUMENT
POINT I
EVERY ONE OF THE ACTIVITIES OF THE GE/PAC

DESCRIBED IN THE COMPLAINT IS AUTHORIZED
BY THE FECA, ITS REGULATIONS OR THE COMMISSION

The predicates for GE's alleged wrongdoing concern
the GE/PAC's contributions to various types of candidates in
the 1986 election year, primarily incumbents and unopposed
candidates. However, each of the activities complained of
is authorized explicitly or implicitly by the FECA, its
regulations or the opinions of the Commission.

A. The FECA and regulations authorize contributions to

unopposed candidates and candidates who "could be
predicted to coast to easy victories"

Mr. Stern complains that the GE/PAC made contribu-
tions to candidates who were unopposed and to candidates who
"could be predicted to coast to easy victories" (complaint p.

2). Nothing in the FECA or regulations prohibits contribu-




tions where an "easy victory" is predicted, and the regula-
tions specifically allow contributions to unopposed can-
didates. The regulatory scheme limits the maximum contribu-
tion made by a political action committee to a candidate for
each separate election. A separate election specifically
includes those elections where a candidate is unopposed:
"(2) An election in which a candidate is

unopposed is a separate election for

the purposes of the limitations on

contributions of this section.

A primary or general election which

is not held because a candidate is

unopposed or received a majority of

votes in a previous election is a

separate election for the purposes of

the limitations on contributions of

this section." 11 C.F.R. § 110.2(1)

(1988) . *
Thus contributions to unopposed candidates are permitted, as
long as they do not violate the contribution limitations for
separate elections or some other regulatory condition. The
complaint nowhere suggests that the GE/PAC's contributions

to unopposed candidates exceeded any regulatory limit or

* The 1986 regulations provide:

"(2) An election in which a candidate is unopposed is a
separate election.

"(3) If no primary election is held because a candidate is
unopposed, the date on which the primary would have been
held shall be deemed to be the date of the primary for
purposes of the contribution limitations." 11 C.F.R. §
110.2(d) (1986).




condition. The complaint on this point simply has no legal

basis.

B. The FECA and regulations do not prohibit
contributions to opposing candidates

Mr. Stern complains that the GE/PAC made contribu-
tions to opposing candidates in certain elections. However,
the GE/PAC is a multi-candidate political committee, and
therefore is permitted to make contributions to many can-
didates. The regulations provide that a separate segregated
fund may qualify as a "multi-candidate committee" if it
receives contributions from more than 50 persons, has been
registered for at least six months, and has contributed to at
least five federal candidates. 11 C.F.R. § 100.5(e) (3)
(1986), (1988). The GE/PAC meets these requirements, and
there is no allegation to the contrary in the complaint.

A qualifying separate segregated fund may contribute
up to $5,000 to each candidate in each election, as opposed to
the $1,000 contribution limit imposed upon non-qualifying
funds. 2 U.S.C. § 441(a)(l); 11 C.F.R. §§ 110.1(b) (1) and
110.2(b) (1) (1988); 11 C.F.R. §§ 110.1(a) (1) and 110.2(a) (1)
(1986) . Nothing in the regulations prohibits a multi-

candidate committee from making contributions to a variety of
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candidates, including candidates opposing one another.* For
committees who limit their contributions to one candidate or
one party, the regulatory scheme recognizes other forms of
political committees, such as a "single candidate committee"
or a "party committee". See 11 C.F.R. § 100.5(e) (1986),
(1988) .

c. The FECA and regulations authorize
post-election contributions

Mr. Stern complains that the GE/PAC made post-

election contributions to candidates who won their elections,
defeating candidates supported by the GE/PAC during the cam-
paign. The regulations, on their face, authorize certain
non-election year contributions. 11 C.F.R. § 110.5(b) (1), (2)
(1986), (1988); see also 11 C.F.R. § 110.2(b) (2) (ii), (3) (1)
(1988) . The Commission's opinions also authorize post-
election and non-election year contributions, so long as such
contributions are properly applied either to a candidate's
outstanding campaign debt or to a future election. In a 1977
opinion, the Commission considered a candidate's transfer of
surplus funds from his 1976 campaign committee to his 1978

committee and explained that "except to the extent of out-

* Any limitation on contributions to opposing candidates would
be a practical impossibility since contributors may designate
the candidate for whom their contribution is intended. See,
e.g., 11 C.F.R. § 110.6 (1986), (1988); 110.2(b) (1988).




standing debts from a 1976 election, each ‘contribution' (as
defined in 2 U.S8.C. § 431(e)) after the date of the general
election in 1976 is charged against the contribution limits of
the original contributor with respect to a future election."
1977 Opinion F.E.C. 24, 1 Fed. Election Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH)
P 5260, at 10,207 (June 28, 1977); see also 1985 Opinion
F.E.C. 5, 1 Fed. Election Camp. Fin. Guide P 5810 (March 6,
1985) (contributions received after an election must be
attributed to the next election if there are no campaign debts
outstanding); 1980 Opinion F.E.C. 60, 1 Fed. Election Camp.
Fin. Guide (CCH) P 5499 (May 30, 1980) (same); see also, 1980
Opinion F.E.C. 30, 1 Fed. Election Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) P
5498 (May 30, 1980) (where campaign was terminated, excess
funds could be applied to next campaign). Nothing contained
in the FECA, the regulations or the Commission's opinions
suggests that a contribution may not be made to a successful
candidate where prior to the election, contributions were made
to other candidates for the same office.

D. Ther Commission has approved
contributions to incumbent candidates

Mr. Stern complains that the GE/PAC backed the
incumbent in 212 House elections and in 27 Senate elections
but only backed the challenger in two House elections and

backed both the incumbent and challenger in five Senate elec-




tions. There is simply nothing in the FECA, regulations or
opinions of the Commission that makes contributions to incum-
bents improper. A multi-candidate political action committee
such as the GE/PAC is authorized to contribute to many can-
didates, and incumbents are, of course, legitimate candidates.
In a 1986 advisory opinion, the Commission found
that a corporation should form a political action committee
if it wished to carry out a proposed corporate-sponsored
political contributions program aimed primarily at incumbent
members of Congress. 1986 Opinion F.E.C. 4, 1 Fed. Election
Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) P 5846 (February 27, 1986). The Com-
mission advised that such a program would be allowed under the
Act if the corporation established, administered, and
solicited contributions to a separate segregated fund that
qualified as a political action committee. The Commission
in no way indicated that there was anything improper in having

such a program target incumbents for distributions.

E. The FECA and regulations do not require corporate
political action committees to tailor contributions
to ratings by the United States Chamber of Commerce

Finally, Mr. Stern complains that contributions went
to candidates without consideration of relative voting record
approval ratings published by the TUnited States Chamber of

Commerce. Under the FECA, corporate political action commit-
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tees are free to choose the candidates to whom they will make
contributions. The GE/PAC, moreover, allows its contributors
to earmark funds so that those funds will, if the contributor
so desires, be sent to a specific candidate or to a specific
political party. Wwhen offered as support for a claimed viola-
tion of the FECA, this allegation is frivolous.

POINT II

NOTHING IN THE COMPLAINT PROVIDES
THE COMMISSION WITH A REASON TO ADOPT
MR. STERN'S UNPRECEDENTED AND IMPRACTICAL
INTERPRETATION OF THE ACT

The complaint alleges that the authorized, legitimate
activities described above have converted the GE/PAC "from an
instrument of political electioneering activity to one of

legislative activity, in direct violation of the explicit

intent and purpose of the statute."” (Complaint p.2:; emphasis
in original). However, the complaint does not allege any
violation of law. With this complaint, Mr. Stern would have
the FECA and its regulations completely transformed through
some entirely new interpretation that would break down the
contributions of political action committees between those
that serve "bona fide" political purposes, and those that,
although otherwise proper under the FECA, serve political
purposes that are not "bona fide" and that must therefore be

seen as improper or illegal. The law, however, does not draw




whatever distinction Mr. Stern might have in mind here, and
for good reason.

The FECA provides that separate segregated funds may
be established for "political purposes". 2 U.S.C. § 441b
(1982) . The FECA does not define political purposes as
"political electioneering activity", and indeed the statute
never even uses the term "political electioneering activity".
There is also nothing in the statute that contrasts "political
electioneering activity" with "legislative activity". It is
of course true that the FECA is generally intended to regulate
expenditures and contributions made "in connection with"
federal elections. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b (1982) (using phrase
"in connection with"); 2 U.S.C. §§ 431(8) (A), 431(9)(A) (1982)
(defining "contributions" and "expenditures" made "for the
purpose of influencing any election for Federal office.") But
this is a far cry from introducing a distinction that would
give substance to the complaint.

The reason the FECA does not use Mr. Stern's
proposed distinction, or contain a basis for the Commission to
introduce such a distinction, is that it would put the govern-
ment in an impossible position. Mr. Stern wants the Commis-
sion to analyze various characteristics of candidates, ie:,
incumbency, Chamber of Commerce approval, and liklihood of

election, to determine which candidates the GE/PAC should




support, and then to declare that contributions to other
candidates do not serve "bona fide political purposes" and are
therefore impermissible. This would leave the Commission with
the daunting and disturbing task of evaluating the political
wisdom of any particular contribution a corporate political
action committee might make. This is not a proper task for a
governmental body. Nothing in the statute or regulations
could justify the commencement of a program under which the
Federal Government determines the permissible political inter-
ests of a political action committee such as the GE/PAC, and
dictates which federal candidates deserve financial support
from that committee. The FECA never contemplated such a
requlatory scheme, and Mr. Stern's complaint provides no
reason for the Commission to go forward in such a novel and

impractical direction.
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CONCLUSIONS

For the reasons set forth above, GE respectfully

requests that the Commission close the file on this matter.

Dated: New York, New York
October 6, 1988

Respectfully submitted,
DAVIS POLK & WARDWELL

or_ QA )

1l Chase ManhatJZn Plaza
New York, New York 10005
Tel.: (212) 530-4000

Attorneys for Respondents

Of Counsel:

Robert B. Fiske, Jr.
Sharon Katz
Michael R. Hepworth
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Lawrence A. Bossidy
James G. Boswell Ii
Silas S. Cathcart
Charles D. Dickey, Jr.
Lawvrence E. Fouraker
Henry H. Henley, Jr.
Henry L. Hillman
Edward E. Hood, Jr.
Robert E. Mercer
Gertrude G. Michelson
Barbara Scott Preiskel
Lewis T. Preston

Frank H.T. Rhodes
Andrew C. Sigler

John F. Welch, Jr.
Walter B. Wriston

RELEVANT STATUTES: 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a)
2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(2)(C)

INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED: Disclosure Reports
FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED: None

I. GENERATION OF MATTER

Philip M. Stern filed a complaint on August 29, 1988, with

the Office of the General Counsel which alleged that the above
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captioned Respondents violated 2 U.8.C. § 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C.
§ 441b(b)(2)(C) of the rederal Election Campaign Act ("FECA").

Mr. Stern alleged General Electric Company and all of its

officers and directors ("GE") violated the Act by making
unlawful corporate treasury expenditures during the 1986
election cycle for the establishment, administration, and
solicitation of contributions to a separate segregated fund to
be utilized for lobbying rather than for political purposes.

Mr. Stern had previously filed a shareholders derivative
action in the New York Southern Pederal District Court on
behalf of himself and all other similarly situated
shareholders, only to have it dismissed on the basis that the
matter is within the exclusive jurisdiction of the FEC. A copy
of the court’s opinion is attached. The basis for Mr. Stern’s
suit in that case was an alleged GE Board of Directors breach
of fiduciary duty caused by the wasting of corporate assets
since 1975 through expenditures soliciting contributions to and
administrating the GE separate segregated fund called the
Non-Partisan Political Support Committee for General Electric
Employees ("GE/PAC").

On October 7, 1988, a response to the present complaint
was filed by counsel for the Respondents. This answer states
that GE/PAC did not distribute any contributions or make any
expenditures, in connection with federal elections, that were
out of GE corporate funds. At the same time, it is noted in
the response that the GE Board of Directors has, since the

establishment of the GE/PAC in 1975, voted to provide it with




administrative funding. This response alsettd that none of the

individually named respondents have had any role whatsoever in
the operation of the GE/PAC or the distribution by it of
contributed funds.
II. PACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. The Law

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended
("the Act"), makes it unlawful for any corporation, or any of
its officers or directors, to consent to any contribution or
expenditure by the corporation in connection with any election
to any political office. 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a). Section
441b(b)(2)(C) goes on to define "contribution or expenditure”

by providing:

"For purposes of this section and section
79(h) of title 15, the term "contribution or
expenditure” shall include any direct or
indirect payment, distribution, loan, advance,
deposit, or gift of money, or any services, or
anything of value (except a loan of money by a
national or State bank made in accordance with
the applicable banking laws and regulations
and in the ordinary course of business) to any
candidate, campaign committee, or political
party or organization, in connection with any
election to any of the offices referred to in
this section, but shall not include-- . . . .

(C) the establishment, administration,
and solicitation of contributions to a
separate segregated fund to be utilized for
political purposes by a corporation, labor
organization, membership organization,
cooperative, or corporation without capital
stock. [emphasis added] 2 U.S.C.

§ 441(b)(2)(C).

B. ANALYSIS

It is Mr. Stern’s position that General Electric’s




separate segregated fund, GE/PAC, has illegally distributed

funds since its inception tot lobbying instead of political
election purposes. Mr. Stern alléqu that in these activities
GE/PAC is merely acting as a conduit for General Electric
Corporation’s lobbying efforts, and thereby General Electric
loses its exemption, granted by Section 441b(b)(2)(C), for the
establishment, administration, and solicitation of
contributions on behalf of GE/PAC. He apparently alleges that
the loss of this exemption would in turn mean GE violated the
corporate prohibition on donating or making expenditures in
connection with a federal election campaign. 1In support of the
assertion that GE/PAC is mainly involved in advocating GE’s
legislative agenda, rather than merely supporting political
candidates for election, Complainant points to non-election
year GE/PAC expenditures "seemingly" unnecessary to the
candidates’ success in the following election. Complainant
provides statistics showing GE/PAC frequently gave money to
incumbent House candidates who had no opponent or who had won
by margins of at least three-to-one in their last four
elections, and thus might be predicted to achieve an easy
victory. Complainant maintains that in such cases the GE/PAC
contribution could not serve a political purpose, and therefore
could only be seen as a manner by which GE could gain influence
over the recipients. Another alleged indicator of "lobbying”
which Complainant notes is that GE/PAC made contributions to
incumbents*with low Chamber of Commerce business approval

rates, but failed to contribute to challengers with high
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Chamber of Commerce business ratings. Complainant impliedly
asserts this is inconsistent with the political purposes of a

political action committee which one would assume to be most

supportive of pro-business candidates. Complainant further

points to the fact that GE/PAC contributed to both candidates
in several Senate elections in 1986, which would seem to be
self-defeating if a political purpose was envisioned. Overall,
Complainant notes that out of 214 House contests in which the
incumbent sought reelection, GE/PAC supported the incumbent in
212 races, or 98% of the time. In contrast GE/PAC only
contributed to 2 challengers in the same year, or 1% of the
time.

GE/PAC Federal Election Commission year-end reports for
the years involved in the present complaint show that GE/PAC
had total receipts of $230,259.30 and $254,208.67 in 1985 and
1986, respectively. During those same time periods GE/PAC gave
contributions to federal candidates and other political
committees totaling $209,875.00 in 1985 and $275,820.00 in
1986. Other disbursements totaled $1,850.03 in 1985 and
$2,143.28 in 1986.

GE maintains that its actions regarding GE/PAC are
explicitly authorized by, or consistent with, the FECA and
related regulations. The response notes that GE/PAC collects
contributions from GE management personnel and that those
contributors may specify the candidates or political parties to
which their contributions are to be distributed. If the

contribution is not designated for a particular candidate,




-6-

decisions determining the recipient of GE/PAC contributions are
left to the discretion of those employees who operate the
GE/PAC.

In answering the allegations, GE correctly asserts that
nothing in the FECA or regulations prohibits contributions
where an "easy victory" is predicted. When discussing
limitations on contributions, the regqulations, in fact,
specifically allude to contributions to unopposed candidates.
See 11 C.F.R. § 110.2(i)(2). Thus, it is legal to contribute
to those unopposed or "easy victory" candidates. There is no
indication that Complainant alleges that GE/PAC contributions
to unopposed candidates are in excess of any legal limit or
otherwise in violation of the Act.

Several Advisory Opinions deal with Commission
determinations regarding the allocation of contributions made

before an election, but not actually received by the candidate

committees until after the election. See, AO 1977-24, and

AO 1985-5. The New York court in which Stern previously
brought suit interpreted past Commission action, allotting
funds received after the election to the next coming election
cycle limitations, to imply Commission recognition that
non-election year contributions are not by their very nature
illegal "lobbying." As the New York court stated in its
dismissal of the Stern suit:

Plaintiff’s claim that the GE/PAC’s

distribution of funds to incumbent congressmen

in non-election years constitutes bribery is

inconsistent with the requlations and rulings
of the FEC. See, 11 C.F.R. § 110.5(b)(1),
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(2); 1977 Opinion F.E.C. 24, 1 Fed. Election
Camp. Pin. Guide (CCH) p. 5260, at 10,207
(June 28, 1977); 1985 Opinion F.E.C. S, 1 Ped.
election Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) (sic). g%ﬁgg
v. General Electric Company, No. 86 Civ.
STLAW, Allfeds
Libtaty)

The Commission has said that a separate segregated fund
may make expenditures "for any lawful purpose consistent with
the Act and regulations.” See, Advisory Opinloh 1983-4;
Advisory Opinion 1983-24; and Advisory Opinion 1986-32. Even
if GE/PAC’s expenditures are viewed as "lobbying expenditures,”
the Commission in Advisory Opinion 1983-4 held that funds
collected by the political action committee of a labor union
may be used to pay the expenses of lobbying activities
conducted by union officials even though they are not
"expenditures" for the purposes of influencing a federal
election as defined in 2 U.S.C. § 431(9). Advisory Opinion
1983-4. Although the use of political action committee
segregated funds in non-election year contributions may or may
not constitute lobbying, neither the Act nor Commission
regqulations explicitly define such expenditures as prohibited
on the grounds that they are not for "political purposes" as
the complainant argues. For this reason, such expenditures
appear to meet the Commission standard of a lawful purpose
consistent with the Act and regulations.

An investigation of the Act’s legislative history also

shows that the paramount concern in enacting prohibitions on

corporate contributions was the segregation of corporate and

political action committee funds. See 93 Cong. Rec. 6522. 1In
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a U.S. Supreme Court case, argued before the effective date of
the FECA, but decided after its effective date in 1971, the
Court confirmed that the direct corporate expenditure

prohibition did not apply to voluntarily financed segregated

funds established for political purposes. Pipefitters Local

Union No. 562 et al. v. United States, 407 U.S. 385 (1972).

The Court in Pipefitters went on to clarify that political

funds need only be separate from the sponsoring union in that
strict segregation from union dues be required. The Court in

Pipefitters stated:

Nowhere, however, has Congress required that
the political organization be formally or
functionally independent of union control or
that union officials be barred from soliciting
contributions or even precluded from
determining how the monies raised will be
spent. Pipefitters at 415,

In contrast to an actual violation of the Act, here there is no
allegation that GE/PAC’s contribution expenditures were derived
from other than voluntary donations made by individuals. There
is no allegation here that GE/PAC contribution funds were
commingled with corporate GE funds. A central basis of
complainants allegation remains an assertion that the GE/PAC
political contribution expenditures constitute "lobbying" for
General Electric Company.

Based on the foregoing, this Office recommends that the
Commission find no reason to believe the General Electric
Company or any of its officers or directors violated
2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) or 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(2)(C) with respect to

the 1986 election cycle contributions of GE/PAC.




I1X. RECONNENDATIONS

1. Find no reason to believe that General Electric Company or
any of its past or present officers or directors violated
2 U.8.C. §§ 441b(a) and 441b(b)(2)(C).

2. Approve the attached letters.

3. Close the file.

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

/////5 / &

Attachments
Respondents answer dated October 6, 1988
Letter to Respondent
Letter to Complainant

BY: Lois G. Lernpr
Associate General Counsel
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of

General Electric Company MUR 2682
General Electric Officers
John F. Welch, Jr.
Lawrence A. Bossidy
Edward E. Hood, Jr.

General Electric Directors
Richard T. Baker
Lawrence A. Bossidy
James G. Boswell II
Silas S. Cathcart
Charles D. Dickey, Jr.
Lawrence E. Fouraker
Henry H. Henley, Jr.
Henry L. Hillman
Edward E. Hood, Jr.
Robert E. Mercer
Gertrude G. Michelson
Barbara Scott Preiskel
Lewis T. Preston

Frank H. T. Rhodes
Andrew C. Sigler

John F. Welch, Jr.
Walter B. Wriston
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CERTIFICATION

R 93N 4

I, Marjorie W. Emmons, Secretary of the Federal
Election Commission, do hereby certify that on November 18,
1988, the Commission decided by a vote of 5-0 to take
the following actions in MUR 2682:

Find no reason to believe that General Electric
Company or any of its past or present officers

or directors violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 44lb(a) and
441b(b) (2) (C) .

(o]

{(Continued)




Federal Election Commission
Certification for MUR 2682
November 18, 1988

Approve the letters, as recommended in the
First General Counsel's report signed
November 15, 1988.

3. Close the file.

Commissioners Aikens, Elliott, Josefiak, McGarry, and

Thomas voted affirmatively for the decision;

Commissioner McDonald did not cast a vote.

Attest:

n 4

et 1€ 1908

Date gfﬂ/Marjorie W. Emmons
ecretary of the Commission

3

Received in the Office of Commission Secretary:Wed., 11-16-88, 10:07
Circulated on 48 hour tally basis: Wed., 11-16-88, 4:00
Deadline for vote: Fri., 11-18-88, 4:00
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHING ION. D C 20463 30, 1988

"

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Philip M. Stern

2000 P. St. N.W.

Suite 408

Washington, D.C. 20036

RE: MUR 2682

Dear Mr. Stern:

Oon November 18, 19688, the rederal Election
Commission reviewed the allegations of your complaint dated
July 15, 1988, and found that on the basis of the information
provided in your complaint, and information provided by counsel
for General Electric Company, there is no reason to believe
General Electric Company or any of its Officers or Directors
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) or 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(2)(C).
Accordingly, on. November 18 , 1988, the
Commission closed the file in this matter. The Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act") allows a
complainant to seek judicial review of. the Commission’s
dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

LIS —

BY: Lois G. Lérner
Associate General Counsel

Enclosure .
General Counsel’s Report

cc: Brown & Seymour
100 Park Avenue, Room 2606
New York, New York 10007

O O -




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHING TON, D C 2046}

Robert B. riske, Jr.

Davis, Polk & Wardwell

1 Chase Manhattan Plaza

New York, NY 10005 G

RE: MUR 2682

General Electric Company and
each of its Officers and
Directors

Dear Mr. Fiske:

On September 6, 1988, the Federal Election Commission
notified your clients, General Electric Company and its
Officers and Directors, of a complaint alleging violations of
certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign _Act of 1971,
as amended.

Oon November 18 , 1988, the Commission found, on the
basis of the information in the complaint, and information
provided by you, that there is no reason to believe General
Electric Company or any of its Officer or Directors violated
2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) or 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(2)(C). Accordingly,
the Commission closed its file in this matter.

This matter will become a part of the public record within
30 days. If you wish to submit any materials to appear on the
public record, please do so within ten days. Please send such
materials to the Office of the General Counsel.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

él/\

Lois G.J Lerner

Associdte General Counsel
Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINCTON, D.C. 20463
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